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       1                        P R O C E E D I N G S

       2            (Transcript continues in sequence from Volume 3.)

       3                 MR. ANDERSON:  Chairman Graham, FPL calls as

       4       its next witness Mr. Armando Olivera, who has not been

       5       in the room to be sworn in.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sir, can I get you to stand

       7       and raise your right hand.

       8                          ARMANDO J. OLIVERA

       9       was called as a witness on behalf of Florida Power and

      10       Light Company, and having been duly sworn, testified as

      11       follows:

      12                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

      13       BY MR. ANDERSON:

      14            Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Olivera.

      15            A.   Good afternoon.

      16            Q.   Would you please state your name and your

      17       business address?

      18            A.   Armando J. Olivera, 700 Universe Boulevard,

      19       Juno Beach, Florida.

      20            Q.   By whom are you employed and in what capacity?

      21            A.   I'm employed by Florida Power and Light.  My

      22       title is President and Chief Executive Officer.

      23            Q.   Have you prepared and caused to be filed five

      24       pages of Prefiled Direct Testimony in this proceeding on

      25       May 2nd, 2011, entitled Nuclear Power Plant
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       1       Cost-Recovery for the Years Ending December 2011 and

       2       2012?

       3            A.   I have.

       4            Q.   Do you have any changes or revisions to your

       5       Prefiled Direct Testimony?

       6            A.   I do not.

       7            Q.   If I asked you the same questions contained in

       8       your Prefiled Direct Testimony, would your answers be

       9       the same?

      10            A.   They will be.

      11                 MR. ANDERSON:  Mr. Chairman, FPL requests that

      12       the Prefiled Direct Testimony be inserted into the

      13       record as though read.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will insert the Prefiled

      15       Testimony of Armando Olivera into the record as though

      16       read.

      17                 MR. ANDERSON:  We also note that there are no

      18       exhibits sponsored by the witness.

      19

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25
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       1       BY MR. ANDERSON:

       2            Q.   Mr. Olivera, have you prepared a summary and

       3       could you provide that to the Commission?

       4            A.   I have.  Thank you.

       5                 Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, Commissioners.

       6       FPL remains committed to the pursuit of the extended

       7       power uprates project because of the significant

       8       expected benefits to customers from the project.  The

       9       project will produce additional power from its existing

      10       nuclear units, increase the percentage of nuclear

      11       generation, produce fuel savings for customers, provide

      12       generating capacity sufficient to meet the needs of more

      13       than 200,000 residential customer accounts, decrease

      14       dependency on fossil fuels, and reduce FPL's system

      15       greenhouse emissions.

      16                 Nuclear power is an important part of

      17       providing clean, efficient, low-cost electric service to

      18       FPL's customers.  FPL's four nuclear units currently

      19       provide approximately 2900 megawatts of our electric

      20       generating capacity, or about 20 percent of the energy

      21       it currently provides to its four and a half million

      22       customers, or approximately 8 million Florida residents.

      23                 A power uprate is a proven, safe, reliable way

      24       to increase output from existing nuclear plants.  We are

      25       replacing current plant systems with more efficient
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       1       equipment that will enable greater power production.  We

       2       expect that these uprate projects will increase FPL's

       3       nuclear base capacity by about 450 megawatts or

       4       15 percent.

       5                 My testimony also addresses the unfounded

       6       allegation that FPL provided incomplete or inaccurate

       7       information to the Commission in the 2009 Nuclear

       8       Cost-Recovery Clause proceeding.  This is a very serious

       9       allegation, and that is why I wanted to make myself

      10       available to the Commission to address any questions.

      11                 As of the date of the hearing in

      12       September 2009, cost forecast information for the EPU

      13       project was not vetted and accepted such that it would

      14       have supported a reliable revision of the estimated

      15       in-service costs for the project.  The work needed for

      16       such a revision was not concluded until April 2010 in

      17       time for the May 2010 nuclear cost-recovery filing

      18       required by the Commission's rules.

      19                 While the EPU project is very challenging due

      20       to its great technical and business complexity, the EPU

      21       project is expected to deliver solid benefits for FPL

      22       customer goes for many years.  Completing the EPU

      23       project is the right thing to do for FPL customers.

      24                 And this concludes my summary.

      25                 MR. ANDERSON:  Mr. Olivera is available for
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       1       cross-examination.

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.  Okay.  Who's

       3       first?

       4                 MS. KAUFMAN:  I think Mr. McGlothlin is going

       5       to go first.

       6                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I'd be happy to start.

       7                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       8       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

       9            Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Olivera.  Joe McGlothlin

      10       with OPC.

      11            A.   Good afternoon, Mr. McGlothlin.

      12            Q.   If you will look at Page 1 of your prefiled

      13       testimony.  At Line 22, and you mentioned this in your

      14       summary, as well, you say the purpose of your testimony

      15       is to address the unfounded allegation that FPL provided

      16       incomplete or inaccurate information.  To whose

      17       unfounded allegation are you referring in that sentence?

      18            A.   I'm referring to the allegations that I have

      19       read that the company purposefully withheld information

      20       from this Commission.

      21            Q.   Yes, sir.  Is there a particular person or

      22       entity --

      23            A.   Well, I believe your office has made that

      24       allegation, and FIPUG has also agreed with that

      25       allegation.
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       1            Q.   Anyone else?

       2            A.   There may be others.

       3            Q.   Can you think of anyone?

       4            A.   Not right off the top of my head.

       5            Q.   Okay.  You filed your testimony on May 2nd,

       6       did you not?

       7            A.   Correct.

       8            Q.   And at that time, is it true that OPC had not

       9       filed its testimony in this docket?

      10            A.   I'm not familiar with the timing of all the

      11       filings.

      12            Q.   Well, would you accept, subject to check, that

      13       OPC's testimony of Doctor Jacobs, who addresses the

      14       subject of the 2009 hearing, was filed in July after --

      15            A.   I accept that, subject to check.

      16                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. McGlothlin, we need for

      17       you to speak more into the mike.  You're not getting

      18       picked up.

      19                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Yes, sir.  Thank you.

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sorry.

      21       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      22            Q.   Did FPL engage Mr. John Reed and his firm,

      23       Concentric Energy Advisors, to perform an investigation

      24       of a certain employee complaint letter that the company

      25       received in February of 2010?
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       1            A.   Yes, we did.

       2            Q.   And as part of that investigation, did

       3       Mr. Reed and his company address the episode with

       4       respect to the testimony filed in May 2009 and the

       5       September 2009 hearing?

       6            A.   Yes, Mr. Reed addressed that.

       7            Q.   Now, do I assume -- FPL has used Mr. Reed and

       8       his company for consulting services in the past, has it

       9       not?

      10            A.   Yes.  We find that Mr. Reed is a very credible

      11       witness, and his firm has done a good job on most

      12       issues.  We happen to disagree in this one conclusion

      13       that he made.  We frankly agreed with most everything

      14       else he had in his report.

      15            Q.   So to take that to the logical next step, at

      16       the time FPL engaged Mr. Reed you believe he was well

      17       qualified to conduct the investigation for which he was

      18       engaged?

      19            A.   I believe that he was well qualified.  I still

      20       believe he is well qualified, but well-qualified people

      21       and reasonable people can have disagreements.

      22                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I'm going to take a moment

      23       and ask that a document be distributed.

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.  Staff, can you help

      25       her pass that out.
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       1                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Mr. Chairman and

       2       Commissioners, this document is a redacted version of

       3       the June 2010 investigation report that Mr. Reed and his

       4       company prepared.  We do commonly refer to it as the

       5       Concentric report.  It has not been made an exhibit at

       6       this point.  I'm requesting that you give it a number.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will enter this -- I'm

       8       sorry, we will give it an exhibit number of 197, and it

       9       will have the short title of Concentric Investigation

      10       Report.

      11                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Yes, sir.

      12                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  June 2010.  Please continue.

      13                 (Exhibit 197 marked for identification.)

      14       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      15            Q.   Mr. Olivera, are you familiar with the

      16       Concentric report?

      17            A.   I'm sorry?

      18            Q.   Are you familiar with the Concentric report?

      19            A.   I am familiar with the Concentric report.

      20            Q.   And do you recognize this to be a redacted

      21       version of that document?

      22            A.   That is what it appears, yes.

      23            Q.   If you will turn to Page 2, under Concentric

      24       overview and work plan, do you see Paragraph B, sources

      25       of information?
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       1            A.   You are referring to page -- which Page 2?

       2       There are a couple of Page 2s.

       3            Q.   Page 2 of 23 as Concentric numbered those

       4       pages at the very bottom.

       5            A.   Okay.

       6            Q.   Are you at Paragraph B, sources of

       7       information?

       8            A.   I am.

       9            Q.   You will see that Mr. Reed says there were two

      10       primary pathways, a number of requested documents, and

      11       also certain interviews.  Was FPL responsive to Mr.

      12       Reed's request for documents that he felt pertinent to

      13       his investigation?

      14            A.   Let me read the two paragraphs, because it has

      15       been a long time since I read this report.

      16            Q.   Yes, sir.

      17                 (Pause.)

      18            A.   I'm finished.

      19            Q.   The question was, was FPL responsive to Mr.

      20       Reed's request for documents?

      21            A.   I believe we were.

      22            Q.   And did FPL make its personnel available for

      23       interviews as he requested?

      24            A.   I believe we did.

      25            Q.   If you will turn to Page 15 of 23.  Let me
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       1       correct my reference.  At Page 3 of the document --

       2            A.   Page 3 of 23?

       3            Q.   Yes.  At the top, Paragraph C is captioned

       4       independence.  Was Mr. Reed and his company -- were Mr.

       5       Reed and his company permitted to act independently from

       6       FPL's influence with respect to the investigation?

       7            A.   I'm sorry, I'm having trouble finding the

       8       specific reference.  You are on Page 3?

       9            Q.   Page 3, top of the page, independence.

      10            A.   Okay.

      11            Q.   And please take a moment, if you wish, to

      12       review that.

      13            A.   Thank you.

      14                 Okay.  I have read the first Section C.

      15            Q.   Yes.  And my question is simply do you agree

      16       with his characterization of the relationship, which is

      17       that he acted independently from any direction or

      18       influence of FPL as he conducted his investigation?

      19            A.   Yes, I do.  I think it is also important to

      20       note that we brought Concentric in at our request, at

      21       our discretion.  We had an employee letter that was

      22       signed by an employee, which is really what generated us

      23       bringing in Concentric to review the allegations, so

      24       this was really brought in at the company's request.  I

      25       asked that it be brought in, because I wanted to make
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       1       sure that the information that we were receiving was

       2       accurate.  And the understanding was that Mr. Reed would

       3       have complete independence to talk to anybody he wanted

       4       to, or his firm wanted to, and to come to their own

       5       conclusions.

       6            Q.   And in that regard, is it true that after

       7       having access to FPL's personnel, after reviewing the

       8       many documents that he requested and that FPL provided,

       9       and after discussing and analyzing the subject of the

      10       prefiled testimony at the September hearing at Pages 12

      11       and 15, did Mr. Reed conclude that by the time your

      12       witness took the stand on September 8th the information

      13       presented and the testimony related thereto was out of

      14       date?

      15            A.   That is what Mr. Reed's report says, and this

      16       is what I referred to earlier.  You know, while, you

      17       know, I have a lot of regards for the quality of the

      18       work that they do, this is one instance where I and the

      19       rest of our team disagreed with his conclusion.

      20                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  That's all my questions.

      21                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Does that conclude your

      22       questions?

      23                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Yes.

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  FIPUG.

      25                          CROSS EXAMINATION
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       1       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

       2            Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Olivera.  How are you?

       3            A.   Good; thank you.

       4            Q.   You would agree with me, would you not, that

       5       it is absolutely critical for the Commission to have

       6       up-to-date correct information as they proceed through

       7       this docket that we are involved in today?

       8            A.   I would agree.  And I think that goes to the

       9       issue of the information that we had and what did we

      10       know, and I think in this context I just want to take an

      11       opportunity to say we had --

      12                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Excuse me.  Mr. Chairman, I

      13       think that he answered my question.  And I know you give

      14       some latitude, but I think that he answered my question,

      15       and that I can move on.

      16                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes.

      17                 Mr. Olivera, here we allow for you to answer

      18       the question, especially if it is yes or no, and we'll

      19       give you a little latitude to clarify a little further,

      20       but depending on the person asking the question on how

      21       much editorial we'll allow into it.  So if you can be a

      22       little bit more concise with your answers, please.

      23                 THE WITNESS:  I'll do my best.  Thank you.

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

      25
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       1       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

       2            Q.   And you would agree that the accuracy of

       3       information that you provide the Commission is

       4       important, regardless of how simple or how complex a

       5       particular project is?

       6            A.   I think regarding -- the accuracy is very

       7       important for both parties.

       8            Q.   Now, you discussed with Mr. McGlothlin the

       9       company's decision to hire Mr. Reed and his company to

      10       look into some of the allegations that were made in an

      11       employee letter, correct?

      12            A.   Correct.

      13            Q.   And when you hired Mr. Reed, is it correct

      14       that you had full confidence in his ability to conduct

      15       this investigation and provide you with an accurate and

      16       complete report?

      17            A.   I do; I did; and I still have confidence in

      18       the capability of the firm.  It doesn't mean that they

      19       are 100 percent correct on everything that they conclude

      20       or say.

      21            Q.   You expected them, however, to do a thorough,

      22       independent, and objective analysis of the information

      23       you provided, is that correct?

      24            A.   I do.

      25            Q.   Were you interviewed for the Concentric
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       1       report?

       2            A.   I was not.

       3            Q.   Recognizing disagreement over this issue of

       4       the accuracy, or inaccuracy of the information, if you

       5       would take a look at Page 3 of 23 of what is now Exhibit

       6       197.  And if you would, look toward the bottom there,

       7       it's a subsection that is called key questions.  Do you

       8       see that?

       9            A.   Yes.

      10            Q.   And one of the questions that Concentric was

      11       tasked with answering is Number 3, which is specifically

      12       whether the information that was provided was accurate,

      13       consistent, timely, and reliable, correct?

      14            A.   Yes.

      15            Q.   I just want you to assume with me, Mr.

      16       Olivera, that the Commission agrees with Concentric and

      17       Mr. Reed's opinion that the information provided to them

      18       in 2009 was not accurate, consistent, timely, or

      19       reliable, if you could make that assumption.  If the

      20       Commission decides that to be the case, would you agree

      21       that a penalty would be appropriate for a company that

      22       provided inaccurate and inconsistent and unreliable

      23       information?

      24            A.   Well, for the record, I don't agree.  But in

      25       your supposition, there has been no evidence found --
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       1                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Excuse me.  Mr. Chairman, I

       2       think we could have a yes or no.

       3                 MR. ANDERSON:  Mr. Chairman, our CEO was asked

       4       specifically to explain, and he's being cut off.  We

       5       respectfully ask that he be permitted to answer the

       6       question.

       7                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Mr. Chairman, I simply asked him

       8       if under the circumstances of my hypothetical he thought

       9       that a penalty would be appropriate.

      10                 MR. ANDERSON:  In which case we would object

      11       to the question, as it assumes facts not in evidence.

      12                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  My understanding is he said

      13       he disagreed, and he was explaining to you why he

      14       disagreed, and we allow for that to happen.  So, Mr.

      15       Olivera, if you would continue.

      16                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

      17                 There was no evidence found of imprudently

      18       spent funds, either by Mr. Reed in his report, he makes

      19       that clear, or by the internal audit of the staff.  So

      20       even if you believe that it was incorrect, there has

      21       been no evidence presented, no one has found that we

      22       spent any of these funds improperly.

      23            Q.   Putting aside the expenditure of the funds, do

      24       you not think it is appropriate for a company to be

      25       penalized if they provide inaccurate or incomplete
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       1       information to the Commission, or is it your testimony

       2       that that is not an appropriate action for the

       3       Commission to take?

       4            A.   If it was determined that the company

       5       knowingly provided misleading information or inaccurate

       6       information, I would agree.  That is not the case here.

       7                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you, Commissioners.

       8       That's all I have.

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  SACE.

      10                 MR. WHITLOCK:  No questions, Mr. Chairman.

      11                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Any other intervenors?

      12                 Staff.

      13                 MR. YOUNG:  No questions.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Any redirect?

      15                 MR. ANDERSON:  Let me pause for just a moment.

      16                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Mr. Chairman, I

      17       apologize, I do have a question or two, and generally we

      18       do that before redirect.

      19                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay; sure.  I apologize,

      20       Commissioner.  I did not see your light.

      21                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  That's all right.  Thank

      22       you.

      23                 Good afternoon.

      24                 THE WITNESS:  Good afternoon.

      25                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Just a couple of quick
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       1       questions.  On Page 3 of your testimony, written

       2       testimony, you make the statement that, I'm quoting,

       3       "FPL did not willfully withhold information that the

       4       Commission needed to make an informed decision."

       5                 Do you believe that FPL withheld information

       6       that was required to be submitted either by statute or

       7       rule?

       8                 THE WITNESS:  No, I don't, and if I explain

       9       why.  We had an estimate from a vendor, a contractor,

      10       analogous to you get an estimate to remodel your house.

      11       Somebody comes in and says it's going cost you ten

      12       thousand dollars.  You want to know what is involved,

      13       what are they going to do for ten thousand dollars.

      14       Take that and magnify that hundreds of thousands of

      15       times.  It's a project with ten million manhours.  We

      16       had not had a chance to vet the information.  We hadn't

      17       validated the information.  We weren't even sure if we

      18       wanted to stick with that contractor at the time that

      19       the testimony was going on.  I mean, we had discussions

      20       do we get rid of Bechtel or not.  Do we break the

      21       project up.  We went through all kinds of iterations

      22       subsequent to the hearings.

      23                 I think you expect us when we come in here

      24       that we present to you a number that is fully vetted,

      25       that we stand by it, that we have spent the time
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       1       scrubbing.

       2                 I mean, the analogy is if you go to the

       3       legislature with a number that you internally in this

       4       Commission haven't had time to review; somebody gives

       5       you a number and you run to the legislature with it.  In

       6       my mind, that is the way that this felt.  And so I was

       7       involved in the decision, and I told them, look, when we

       8       have -- when we fully vet the information, when we

       9       understand whether this is accurate or not, we'll go to

      10       the Commission.

      11                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  And so I'm going to turn

      12       it back and make sure that I'm hearing you correctly.

      13       From your position, as CEO and President, what I'm

      14       hearing you say is that it is your belief and

      15       professional opinion that those altered numbers or

      16       revised numbers were not required to be disclosed to the

      17       Commission at the point in time that is under discussion

      18       and should not have been because of where they were in

      19       the review process?  And feel free to restate.

      20                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.  Let me be completely

      21       transparent.  I mean, after all the discussions that

      22       have been going on about this information, you know, I

      23       have asked myself, you know, what should we have done.

      24       And perhaps we missed an opportunity during the hearings

      25       to say, look, we have this information from a vendor.
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       1       It hasn't been vetted.  It's not the official number.

       2       We still stand by this number, meaning the estimate that

       3       Mr. Kundalkar presented.  That was still the official

       4       number.  You know, you step back and you say, well, I

       5       think you still would have expected us to have -- not to

       6       present something to you until it is vetted, and I think

       7       also we would have lost some leverage with the vendor in

       8       trying to negotiate a better price once that information

       9       sort of becomes effectively public, when you discuss it

      10       in this forum.

      11                 But it wouldn't have changed -- you know,

      12       perhaps we should have said it.  It wouldn't have

      13       changed, at the end of the day, the estimate that we

      14       stood by, which was the estimate that was presented to

      15       this Commission.

      16                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.  And I do

      17       intend to ask a similar question when OPC Witness Jacobs

      18       comes, who was also listed before us on this issue.  I

      19       have a question on another point, if I may, Mr.

      20       Chairman.

      21                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.  You have the floor.

      22                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Mr. Olivera, I recognize

      23       in the Prehearing Order you are specifically listed on

      24       Issue 15A, which you have been questioned on now and

      25       responded to, but I would like to ask you a question on
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       1       another issue, which is in the Prehearing Order Issue

       2       3A.  And, again, I recognize you are not listed for

       3       that, but in your position as CEO and president, I think

       4       it would be useful to me to pose this question to you.

       5                 We have heard in opening arguments and in some

       6       of the testimony and responses and questions today the

       7       position of SACE that regarding Turkey Point 6 and 7

       8       that there is no real demonstrated intent to actually

       9       construct the reactors.  I recognize that the receipt of

      10       a COL is a necessary step in the longer process, but

      11       from your perspective, what things is the company doing

      12       or not doing that represent an intent or commitment to

      13       move forward on construction?

      14                 THE WITNESS:  We are currently pursuing, as

      15       Mr. Scroggs mentioned, the permitting process at the

      16       NRC, but there is also a lot of local permits that are

      17       going on.  We are in the process of getting the water

      18       permits.  We are in the process of going through a very

      19       contentious transmission line siting, because it will

      20       require additional transmission in some of the most

      21       heavily congested areas in our service territory.  We

      22       are also pursuing all the state issues.  There are

      23       literally dozens of permits that have to be obtained,

      24       and so we are currently under that process.

      25                 What we are now doing, and I think Mr. Scroggs
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       1       referred to it, we have not contracted with an

       2       engineering procurement and construction contractor to

       3       start the project.  And if I may just hit quickly this

       4       issue of, you know, what our intentions are.  Our

       5       intentions are to go through the licensing process.

       6       When we have the COLA application approved, I think we

       7       will look at, you know, what is happening, what do we

       8       think is the most likely demand outlook for the state.

       9       You know, does this project -- is the project needed?

      10       Hopefully it will be, because it will be a positive sign

      11       for the economy.  And, you know, is it -- what is our

      12       view of what the alternatives are.

      13                 You know, I am very bullish on nuclear.

      14       Fundamentally, I believe that our country would be

      15       better off if we had more nuclear plants for lots of

      16       reasons.  Florida, in particular, because we are so

      17       dependent on natural gas.  You know, right now life is

      18       good because gas has been cheap and very stable in the

      19       $4 range, but I think you were in this Commission when

      20       gas hit $14 per MMBtu, which was not that far away.  It

      21       was October of '05.  So I have lived through all of

      22       those things, and I fundamentally believe that our

      23       customers and our state are better served by a balanced,

      24       a more balanced fuel portfolio.

      25                 Whether that is doable or not, we don't have
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       1       to make that decision today.  And please be assured that

       2       we would come back to you and say, look, this is our

       3       view.  We have the license -- and you have flexibility

       4       once you get that license.  Flexibility that you don't

       5       have today.  And it is going to take four or five years

       6       to get this license.  I think it is the right thing for

       7       our customers, I think it is the right thing for our

       8       state, and if I had the power, the right thing for our

       9       country.

      10                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.  Thank you,

      11       Mr. Chairman.

      12                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Mr. Chairman, could I ask a

      13       couple of questions just following up on Commissioner

      14       Edgar?

      15                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  No, sir.  Commissioner

      16       Balbis.

      17                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      18                 And I just have one question for Mr. Olivera.

      19       In your testimony, and I believe Commissioner Edgar

      20       brought it up on your statement on FPL did not willfully

      21       withhold information during the September 2009 hearing,

      22       and you indicated that in your testimony that's because

      23       that information wasn't properly vetted.  Is the, or was

      24       the information that was presented, did that go through

      25       a vetting process that you described that the new
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       1       information did not?

       2                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, it did.  The information we

       3       provided to you went through multiple levels of reviews,

       4       both within the nuclear organization, the construction

       5       organization, and then through the senior steering

       6       committee.

       7                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  And that process, I

       8       believe you mentioned it in your testimony, for the new

       9       information was subsequently done in time for the next

      10       year's hearing, is that correct?

      11                 THE WITNESS:  It was.  And actually that

      12       second round of information, because it represented an

      13       increase, went through even more scrutiny than the prior

      14       one.  We actually brought in a third party to really

      15       review the detailed estimates that Bechtel had provided.

      16       So we brought in more resources to really truly vet that

      17       information, and that took a period of months.  So it

      18       wasn't until the subsequent filing that we had gone

      19       through that whole vetting process.

      20                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  Thank you.  I

      21       don't have any further questions.

      22                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Florida Power and Light,

      23       redirect.

      24                 MR. ANDERSON:  We have no redirect, Mr.

      25       Chairman.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Exhibits.

       2                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I move 197.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We are going to enter 197

       4       into the record.

       5                 MR. ANDERSON:  No objection.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff?

       7                 MR. YOUNG:  No objection.

       8                 (Exhibit Number 197 admitted into the record.)

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And there is nothing --

      10       there is no exhibits from this witness?

      11                 MR. YOUNG:  No.

      12                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Are you finished with

      13       this witness?

      14                 MR. ANDERSON:  We are.  He is indicated as a

      15       rebuttal witness who will be returning.

      16                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      17                 MR. ANDERSON:  And we do have our next witness

      18       prepared.

      19                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Thank you, sir, for

      20       your testimony.

      21                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

      22                 MR. ROSS:  Mr. Chairman, the company calls

      23       John Reed.

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Before this witness starts,

      25       we are about at our two hour mark and we have got to let
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       1       our court reporter rest those fingers.  So we will take

       2       a break and we reconvene here at 4:00 o'clock.

       3                 (Recess.)

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Florida Power and

       5       Light, you're up.

       6                 MR. ROSS:  Mr. Chairman, Mr. Reed is on the

       7       stand, and he has not been sworn.

       8                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Reed, if I can get you

       9       to stand and raise your right hand.  Is there anybody

      10       else that we are going to be doing today that has not

      11       been sworn earlier?

      12                 MR. ROSS:  Mr. Jones is in the room.

      13                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  If you can raise your right

      14       hand, as well.

      15                 (Witnesses sworn.)

      16                 MR. ROSS:  May I proceed?

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes, please.

      18                             JOHN J. REED

      19       was called as a witness on behalf of Florida Power and

      20       Light Company, and having been duly sworn, testified as

      21       follows:

      22                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

      23       BY MR. ROSS:

      24            Q.   Mr. Reed, would you please state your name and

      25       business address.
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       1            A.   My name is John Reed.  My address is 39 Boston

       2       Post Road, Marlboro, Massachusetts 01752.

       3            Q.   By whom are you employed, and in what

       4       capacity?

       5            A.   I am the Chairman and CEO of Concentric Energy

       6       Advisors.

       7            Q.   Have you prepared and caused to be filed 50

       8       pages of Prefiled Direct Testimony in this proceeding on

       9       March 1, 2001, entitled Extended Power Uprates 2009?

      10            A.   Yes, I have.

      11            Q.   Have you prepared and caused to be filed 47

      12       pages of Prefiled Direct Testimony in this proceeding on

      13       March 1, 2011, entitled Turkey Point 6 and 7, 2009 and

      14       2010?

      15            A.   Yes, I have.

      16            Q.   Do you have any changes or revisions to your

      17       Prefiled Direct Testimony?

      18            A.   No, I do not.

      19            Q.   If I asked you the same questions contained in

      20       your Prefiled Direct Testimony, would your answers be

      21       the same?

      22            A.   Yes, they would.

      23                 MR. ROSS:  Mr. Chairman, I ask that the

      24       Prefiled Direct Testimony of Mr. Reed be inserted into

      25       the record as though read.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will insert the prefiled

       2       direct testimony of Mr. Reed into the record as though

       3       read.

       4

       5

       6

       7

       8

       9

      10

      11

      12

      13

      14

      15

      16

      17

      18

      19

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25
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       1       BY MR. ROSS:

       2            Q.   Mr. Reed, are you also sponsoring exhibits to

       3       your direct testimony?

       4            A.   Yes, I am.

       5            Q.   And do those exhibits consist of documents

       6       labeled JJR EPU-1 through JJR EPU 6 for the extended

       7       power uprate 2009 testimony?

       8            A.   Yes.

       9            Q.   And do those exhibits consist of documents

      10       labeled JJR NNP-1 through JJR NNP-5 for the Turkey Point

      11       6 only 7 testimony?

      12            A.   That's correct.

      13                 MR. ROSS:  Mr. Chairman, I would note that

      14       those exhibits are marked as Exhibits 38 through 48 on

      15       the Staff's Exhibit List.

      16                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      17       BY MR. ROSS:

      18            Q.   Mr. Reed, have you prepared a summary of your

      19       testimony for the Commission.

      20            A.   Yes, I have.

      21            Q.   Would you please provide that summary now?

      22            A.   Yes.  Good afternoon.  The purposes of my

      23       testimony is to address the appropriate standard for the

      24       Commission's review of FPL's costs in this proceeding

      25       and to review the processes and procedures used by FPL
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       1       in 2009 to manage the EPU project, and in 2009 and 2010

       2       to manage the development of an option to construct new

       3       nuclear generating units at Turkey Point.

       4                 First, the prudent standard which is

       5       applicable to this case asks what a reasonable manager

       6       would do with the facts known or knowable at the time of

       7       the decision.  Prudence is defined by a range of

       8       reasonable actions and not by a perfect performance.

       9       Concentric reviewed key elements of FPL's internal

      10       controls for each of the five processes that comprised

      11       the company's project management approach.

      12                 Concentric found that during the first half of

      13       2009, FPL did not satisfactorily comply with certain

      14       project estimating and projecting processes for the EPU

      15       project.  In addition, we found that in the

      16       September 2009 nuclear cost-recovery hearings, certain

      17       out-of-date information regarding the EPU project was

      18       provided by an FPL witness to the FPSC.

      19                 Notwithstanding these findings, we also

      20       concluded that FPL's actions have not led to any

      21       imprudently incurred costs or to any incorrect decisions

      22       regarding the EPU project.  In addition, Concentric made

      23       recommendations and observations related to FPL's

      24       policies and procedures that are intended to enhance the

      25       effectiveness of FPL's management of the EPU project and

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       634

       1       FPL has addressed nearly all of these recommendations.

       2                 First, with respect to the project estimating

       3       and budgeting process, I found that FPL has

       4       well-developed corporate procedures in place that

       5       outline the process to be used by each business unit

       6       when developing annual budgets.  For the EPU project, we

       7       confirmed that the use of several budget and cost

       8       reporting mechanisms that were established to ensure

       9       that key decisions related to the EPU project were

      10       prudent and made at the appropriate level of FPL's

      11       management.

      12                 For Turkey Point 6 and 7, we confirmed the use

      13       of multiple reports that track budget performance on a

      14       cumulative and periodic basis, along with a process for

      15       describing budget variances.  In addition, the new

      16       nuclear budget processes include overlapping mechanisms

      17       that help ensure that senior management is well-informed

      18       of project performance.

      19                 Finally, FPL has developed a cost estimate for

      20       Turkey Point 6 and 7 that is sufficiently detailed for

      21       the current phase of the project.  With respect to

      22       project schedule development and management, I found

      23       that FPL has clear corporate policies for developing

      24       project schedules, and has complied with those

      25       procedures to develop the schedules for the EPU and new
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       1       nuclear projects.  These procedures utilize industry

       2       standard critical path scheduling methods and software

       3       to optimize project schedules.  FPL has also taken

       4       adequate steps to prudently manage and report on

       5       schedule performance.

       6                 With respect to internal oversight mechanisms

       7       and external oversight mechanisms, I found that FPL has

       8       established both to gauge project performance and to

       9       incorporate independent opinions on project controls and

      10       cost estimation.  This includes the use of periodic

      11       executive reporting and external audit requirements.

      12                 My overall conclusions are that FPL's project

      13       management practices and procedures for the EPU project

      14       were reasonable, and as of December 31st, 2009, met

      15       industry norms.  I found the same for the new nuclear

      16       project for calendar years 2009 and 2010.  All 2009 EPU

      17       costs for which FPL is seeking recovery were prudently

      18       incurred, and all of the 2009 and 2010 new nuclear costs

      19       for which FPL is seeking recovery were also prudently

      20       incurred.

      21                 That concludes my testimony.

      22                 MR. ROSS:  Mr. Chairman, Mr. Reed is available

      23       for cross-examination.

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you, sir.  Who's

      25       first?
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       1                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I'll go first.

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. McGlothlin.

       3                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       4       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

       5            Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Reed.  Good to see you

       6       again.

       7            A.   Good afternoon.

       8            Q.   I believe that the portion of the testimony

       9       and exhibits that corresponds to one of your points in

      10       the summary is contained on what was originally marked

      11       JJR-5.  Would that be 42 at Observation 7?  Can you turn

      12       to that?

      13            A.   Are you talking about JJR EPU 5?

      14            Q.   Correct.

      15            A.   Just a moment.  Yes, I have that.  And which

      16       observation did you want?

      17            Q.   Observation Number 7.  Would you take a moment

      18       and read that out loud, please?

      19            A.   I have that.  And you want me to read it out

      20       loud, you said?

      21            Q.   Yes, please.

      22            A.   "Concentric has noted an instance where the

      23       information provided by FPL to the Florida Public

      24       Service Commission did not reflect the most up-to-date

      25       information as of the time it was provided to the FPSC
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       1       in September 2009."

       2            Q.   And you and your firm describe the basis for

       3       that conclusion at some depth in the June 2010 report,

       4       did you not?

       5            A.   Yes.

       6            Q.   Which has since then been marked and accepted

       7       as Exhibit 197.  Do you have a copy of that available to

       8       you?

       9            A.   Yes.  The June 21st, 2010, report?

      10            Q.   Yes.

      11            A.   And, I'm sorry, that was Exhibit 197?

      12            Q.   Correct.

      13            A.   Okay.  I have that.

      14            Q.   Please turn to Page 20 of 23.

      15            A.   Go ahead.

      16            Q.   In the middle of that page you make some

      17       observations about the risk management process, do you

      18       not?

      19            A.   I do.

      20            Q.   At Page 20 of 23 as Concentric first labeled

      21       the document on the very bottom.

      22            A.   That is correct.

      23            Q.   Would you please take a moment and read those

      24       bullet points that appear underneath the reference to

      25       the risk management process.  Read them out load, if you
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       1       would.

       2            A.   Oh, out loud.  Okay.  "It underestimated the

       3       risk and costs associated with the fast-track project.

       4       It did not assess the capacity of the organization and

       5       costs, and early warning on cost overruns and undefined

       6       scope depletion were not dealt with in a timely manner."

       7            Q.   Now, these assessments, as you describe them,

       8       were portions of presentations made by the EPU project

       9       managers to the executive steering committee, is that

      10       correct?

      11            A.   Yes.

      12            Q.   And you indicate there that Concentric concurs

      13       with these assessments.  Does that include the first one

      14       which says that FPL underestimated the risks and costs

      15       associated with the fast-track project?

      16            A.   As of July 2009, yes.

      17            Q.   Okay.  Those presentations by the project

      18       managers to the executive steering committee include

      19       other observations categorized as lessons learned, do

      20       they not?

      21            A.   It did.

      22            Q.   Did you see any of those lessons learned with

      23       which you did not agree?

      24            A.   I would have to go back to the document, and

      25       there are actually two documents from July 25th, not
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       1       just one, in terms of the ESC presentations.  Sitting

       2       here today, I don't recall having any significant

       3       disagreement with any of the conclusions, but to verify

       4       that I would have to have the document in front of me.

       5                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I won't ask you to do that.

       6       That's all my questions.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Ms. Kaufman.

       8                 MS. KAUFMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

       9                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      10       BY MS. KAUFMAN:

      11            Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Reed.

      12            A.   Good afternoon.

      13            Q.   Vicki Kaufman on behalf of the Florida

      14       Industrial Power Users Group.  I want to talk to you a

      15       little bit more about Exhibit 197, the Concentric

      16       report.  When you were involved in preparing the report,

      17       I understand that you conducted -- you or your staff

      18       conducted interviews with FPL personnel, is that right?

      19            A.   Yes, we did.

      20            Q.   And was everyone to whom you wished to talk

      21       made available to you by FPL?

      22            A.   Yes.  Everyone that we asked to speak to was

      23       made available.

      24            Q.   And were the people you interviewed

      25       cooperative and forthcoming?
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       1            A.   Yes, I think they were.

       2            Q.   You also, you and your staff also reviewed

       3       documents in regard to this report, is that right?

       4            A.   Yes, many thousands of pages of documents.

       5            Q.   And were all the documents that you requested

       6       and you thought pertinent provided to you by FPL?

       7            A.   Everything we requested was provided to us,

       8       yes.

       9            Q.   In your report, Exhibit Number 197, you have a

      10       number of conclusions that you came to after your

      11       interviews and investigations, is that correct?

      12            A.   Yes.

      13            Q.   When you prepared this report, did you prepare

      14       it objectively based on the information that you had at

      15       the time?

      16            A.   Yes, we did.

      17            Q.   Do you stand by the conclusions and

      18       discussions in this report?

      19            A.   Yes.  Our opinions have not changed from that

      20       which were expressed in the report.

      21            Q.   Let me ask you if you would turn to Page 15 of

      22       23 of Exhibit 197, the Concentric report.

      23            A.   Page 15.  I have that.

      24            Q.   Yes.  And about midway down the page, these

      25       numbers are so little, after, I believe, Footnote 87,
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       1       you say Concentric also notes that the ESC, and that is

       2       executive steering committee, is that correct?

       3            A.   The executive steering committee, yes.

       4            Q.   ESC was explicitly advised that the new cost

       5       estimates were inconsistent with the May 2008 and May

       6       2009 data that had been presented to the Florida Public

       7       Service Commission.  Is that your statement there?

       8            A.   Yes.

       9            Q.   So, is it your view that -- well, first of

      10       all, can you tell us who is on the executive steering

      11       committee and what their purpose is, if you know?

      12            A.   It is to provide guidance to the uprate

      13       project.  And the members of the steering committee

      14       change from time to time, but it includes, for example,

      15       the COO of NextEra Energy, it includes Mr. Olivera.  Mr.

      16       Jones attends those meetings.  Terry Jones, that is.  It

      17       includes executives both within the parent company and

      18       within the utility, as well as the senior members of the

      19       uprate organization.

      20            Q.   So would you agree that the membership of the

      21       ESC contains high level of FPL executives and employees?

      22            A.   Yes.

      23            Q.   And would it be your expectation that

      24       information presented to these high-level employees and

      25       executives would be developed at the time it was
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       1       presented?

       2            A.   I'm sorry, would be what?

       3            Q.   Would have been analyzed and reviewed before

       4       being presented to the ESC?

       5            A.   Yes.

       6            Q.   Would it be your opinion that information

       7       would be presented to this committee that was informal

       8       and had not been the subject of review?

       9            A.   Well, the term informal is, I think, very

      10       subjective.  The material that was presented with regard

      11       to the cost estimate, especially in the July 2009

      12       meeting, had gone through substantial review.

      13            Q.   Now, on Page 16 of the Concentric report, the

      14       second full paragraph, the sentence appears the new

      15       estimates, the estimates we have just been discussing,

      16       were the product of more than a dozen people working

      17       extended hours for a month and had been reviewed by

      18       every level of management in the EPU organization.  Did

      19       you find that to be the case from your review of the

      20       documents and your interviews?

      21            A.   Yes, that statement is correct.

      22            Q.   Further down, Page 16, actually the second

      23       paragraph from the bottom, you say -- or your report

      24       says we believe that a $300 million, or 27 percent

      25       increase in the projected cost of the EPU project should
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       1       have been discussed in the live testimony on

       2       September 8th, 2009.  Do you see that?

       3            A.   I see that.

       4            Q.   Is that still your view?

       5            A.   Yes.  I wouldn't want that statement taken out

       6       of context, but in the full context of that page that

       7       continues to be my view.

       8            Q.   Mr. Reed, do you think that it's important in

       9       the regulatory process that regulators be provided with

      10       the most accurate and correct information at the time

      11       they are making their decision?

      12            A.   To the extent that is possible, yes.

      13            Q.   And would you agree with me, based on some of

      14       the findings that you have reviewed, that that did not

      15       occur in the case of the information presented in the

      16       2009 nuclear hearing related to the uprate?

      17            A.   Just to be clear, it is my view as expressed

      18       in this report that all of the information, but for one

      19       piece of information was accurate, complete, and

      20       truthful.  One piece of information regarding the cost

      21       estimate, in my opinion, was not the best information

      22       available at the time.

      23            Q.   And that was the information concerning the

      24       $300 million, or the 27 percent increase we just

      25       discussed on Page 16?
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       1            A.   It is the information underlying that fact,

       2       yes.

       3                 MS. KAUFMAN:  That's all I have, Mr. Chairman.

       4       Thank you.

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

       6                 SACE.

       7                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

       8                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       9       BY MR. WHITLOCK:

      10            Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Reed.

      11            A.   Good afternoon.

      12            Q.   I'd like to ask you to look at your testimony

      13       dated March 1st of this year regarding Turkey Point

      14       6 and 7, 2009 and 2010?

      15            A.   Okay.  Give me just a moment.

      16            Q.   Page 20, when you get there.  You're like me,

      17       too many notebooks.

      18            A.   Yes.  Turkey Point, March 2011, you said?

      19            Q.   No -- right, yes, I'm sorry, March 1st, 2011,

      20       testimony.

      21            A.   And Page 20?

      22            Q.   Page 20.

      23            A.   Go ahead.

      24            Q.   Okay.  On Line 9 you were asked to please

      25       generally describe Turkey Point 6 and 7?
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       1            A.   Yes.

       2            Q.   Would you mind reading out loud just the first

       3       sentence of your answer there?

       4            A.   PTN 6 and 7 is currently focused on obtaining

       5       the necessary licenses and permits so as to provide FPL

       6       and its customers the option to construct two nuclear

       7       units at the existing PTN site.

       8            Q.   And I believe I heard you, and correct me if

       9       I'm wrong, in your summary also reference FPL's

      10       activities related to Turkey Point 6 and 7 as pursuing

      11       an option, is that correct?

      12            A.   Yes.  At this time I think that's the best

      13       description.

      14            Q.   Okay.  And were you are in here for Mr.

      15       Olivera's testimony a few minutes ago?

      16            A.   Only a portion of it.

      17                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Okay.  No further questions.

      18       Thank you.

      19                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Any other intervenors?

      20       Seeing none.  Staff.

      21                 MR. YOUNG:  No questions.

      22                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Board members?

      23                 Redirect.

      24                 MR. ROSS:  Very briefly.

      25                         REDIRECT EXAMINATION
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       1       BY MR. ROSS:

       2            Q.   Mr. Reed, would you turn to Page 20 of your

       3       report identified here as Exhibit 197?

       4            A.   Yes, I have that.

       5            Q.   To follow up on some questions that Ms.

       6       Kaufman asked you, the items in the middle of the page,

       7       these were characterized as lessons learned, is that

       8       correct?

       9            A.   That's correct.

      10            Q.   And what did you interpret that to be in terms

      11       of the company's perspective on these issues, having

      12       read the ESC presentation?

      13            A.   I'm sorry, could you ask that question again?

      14            Q.   Yes.  In terms of -- in your interpretation,

      15       what were the lessons learned?  What was the company

      16       getting at it in discussing lessons learned?

      17            A.   This is part of a process that I actually

      18       applaud within FPL.  It is a self-critical organization.

      19       And whenever new information comes in, they look at it

      20       and ask is there anything that we now know that we can

      21       use to evaluate our past performance.  These are lessons

      22       learned that they generated.  These are not conclusions

      23       that I generated, and they presented those lessons

      24       learned to the management team executive steering

      25       committee along with the new cost estimate.
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       1            Q.   In reviewing the lessons learned, either

       2       individually or in the aggregate, do you believe that

       3       those lessons learned were evidence of imprudence on the

       4       part of Florida Power and Light Company?

       5            A.   Not at all.  Again, it's a process that I

       6       applaud.  It's an organization that is seeking to learn

       7       and to improve continuously its processes going forward.

       8                 MR. ROSS:  No further questions, Mr. Chairman.

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Do we need to move

      10       some exhibits into the record?

      11                 MR. ROSS:  Mr. Chairman, we would move

      12       admission of Exhibits 38 through 48.

      13                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will move Exhibits 38

      14       through 48 into the record.  And there was no other

      15       exhibits added, I take it?  No.  Okay.

      16                 (Exhibits 38 through 48 admitted into

      17       evidence.)

      18                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Are we finished with this

      19       witness?

      20                 MR. ROSS:  Yes.  Mr. Reed will return for

      21       rebuttal.  We are ready for the next witness.

      22                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Mr. Reed, thank you

      23       very much for your testimony.

      24                 (Transcripts continues in sequence in

      25       Volume 5.)
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       1       STATE OF FLORIDA    )

       2                           :    CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

       3       COUNTY OF LEON      )

       4

                         I, JANE FAUROT, RPR, Chief, Hearing Reporter

       5       Services Section, FPSC Division of Commission Clerk, do

               hereby certify that the foregoing proceeding was heard

       6       at the time and place herein stated.

       7                 IT IS FURTHER CERTIFIED that I

               stenographically reported the said proceedings; that the

       8       same has been transcribed under my direct supervision;

               and that this transcript constitutes a true

       9       transcription of my notes of said proceedings.

      10                 I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am not a relative,

               employee, attorney or counsel of any of the parties, nor

      11       am I a relative or employee of any of the parties'

               attorney or counsel connected with the action, nor am I

      12       financially interested in the action.
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